ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON NATURAL GAS DEVELOPMENT
July 31, 2006
1:57 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Gary W ken

Senat or Con Bunde

Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

Senat or Ben Stevens

Senator Kim Elton

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Lyda G een
Senator Bert Stedman
Senat or Lynman Hof f man
Senat or Donny O son
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 3002
"An Act relating to the Al aska Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act;
relating to nunicipal inpact noney received under the terns of a
stranded gas fiscal contract; relating to determ nation of full
and true value of property and required contributions for
education in nunicipalities affected by stranded gas fiscal
contracts; and providing for an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 3001
"An Act relating to the production tax on oil and gas and to

conservation surcharges on oil; relating to crimnal penalties
for wviolating conditions governing access to and use of
confidenti al information relating to the production tax;

anending the definition of 'gas' as that definition applies in
the Alaska Stranded Gas Developnent Act; meking conform ng
amendnents; and providing for an effective date."

SCHEDULED, NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: SB3002

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -1- July 31, 2006



SHORT TI TLE: STRANDED GAS ANMENDMENTS

SPONSOR( s) :

07/ 12/ 06
07/ 12/ 06
07/ 13/ 06
07/ 13/ 06
07/ 13/ 06
07/ 14/ 06
07/ 14/ 06
07/ 14/ 06
07/ 24/ 06
07/ 24/ 06
07/ 24/ 06
07/ 25/ 06
07/ 25/ 06
07/ 25/ 06
07/ 26/ 06
07/ 26/ 06
07/ 26/ 06
07/ 27/ 06
07/ 27/ 06
07/ 27/ 06
07/ 28/ 06
07/ 28/ 06
07/ 28/ 06
07/ 31/ 06

Bl LL: SB3001

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
NGD

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 1: 30 PM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 1: 30 PM SENATE

SHORT TI TLE: O L/ GAS PROD. TAX

SPONSOR( s) :

07/ 12/ 06
07/ 12/ 06
07/ 13/ 06
07/ 13/ 06
07/ 13/ 06
07/ 14/ 06
07/ 14/ 06
07/ 14/ 06
07/ 24/ 06
07/ 24/ 06
07/ 25/ 06
07/ 25/ 06
07/ 25/ 06
07/ 26/ 06
07/ 26/ 06

SENATE NGD COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
NGD

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( NGD)

REFERRALS

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

532

532

532

532

532

532

532

532

REFERRALS

FI NANCE

FI NANCE

532

532

NGD AT 1: 30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Schedul ed But Not Heard
NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( NGD)

NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

Heard & Hel d

July 31,



07/ 26/ 06 (S) M NUTE( NGD)

07/ 27/ 06 (S) NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
07/ 27/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

07/ 27/ 06 (S) M NUTE( NGD)

07/ 28/ 06 (S) NGD AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
07/ 28/ 06 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

07/ 31/ 06 (S) NGD AT 1: 30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532

W TNESS REG STER

DONALD SHEPLER

Greenberg Traurig, LLP

Consultant to the Legislature

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 3002

Rl CK HARPER

Econ One Research, Inc.

Consultant to the Legislature

Three Allen Center, Suite 2825

333 Clay Street

Houston, TX 77002

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 3002

MARTIN MASSEY, Joint Interest Manager for U'S. Operations
ExxonMbi | Production
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 3002

DAVI D VAN TUYL, Conmerci al Manager

Al aska Gas G oup

British Petrol eum ( BP)

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 3002

VENDY KING Director of External Strategies
ANS Gas Devel opnent Team

ConocoPhi |l i ps Al aska, Inc.

PO Box 100360

Anchorage, AK 99510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 3002

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS called the Senate Special Committee on
Nat ural Gas Devel opnent neeting to order at 1:57:51 PM Present
at the roll call were Senators Gary W I ken, Con Bunde, Fred
Dyson, Thomas Wagoner, Ben Stevens, Kim Elton and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 3- July 31, 2006



SB 3002- STRANDED GAS AMENDMENTS

CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced the conmttee would continue the
heari ngs on natural gas devel opment. He introduced Don Shepler
and Rick Harper, Consultants to the Legislature.

1:58: 58 PM

DONALD SHEPLER, Greenberg Traurig, LLP, Consultant to the
Legislature testified on the issue of Basin Control and provided
a witten nenorandum outlining his views [Basin Control |ssues
Arising From SGDA Contract]. He said that it is essential to
identify the problem up-front. The issue arises out of the
concerns of the “independents” or “explorer-producers” that
access to the pipeline will be Iimted or restricted such that
they have to give up their leases or sell their gas to the
producer-owners at distressed prices.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whet her by “independents” he meant conpanies
that are not part of pipeline project itself, wthout any
inplication as to the size or capital value of the conpany.

MR. SHEPLER responded that he neant non-owner producers as
opposed to owner-producers.

He expl ained that the issue of access only arises when one group
of conpetitors has ownership and control of the pipeline
facility that their conpetitors need in order to nonetize their
reserves. Said another way, if there were an independent
pi peline conpany that had no ownership interest in the upstream
production activities, it wuld not present the issue of Basin
Control that cones wth ownership being held by parties
conpeting with potential shipper-producers on the North Sl ope.

MR. SHEPLER advised that the access issue is paranount to the
non- owner producers that conpete with the owners for gas |eases
and reserves; but that my not be the only issue under the

headi ng of Basin Control. It could enconpass others such as how
| eases are administered and how they revert to the state. His
experience indicates that, if the independents had assurance

that the pipeline would be available for their gas in a tinely
fashi on, Basin Control would be a non-issue.

An independent pipeline wuld have a different economc
i ncentive because, for an independent pipeline, expansion is the
“I'i febl ood” of the business; its return on equity is based on
how much steel is in the ground.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -4- July 31, 2006



Econ One Research, Inc. estinmated that, at a $2.50 tariff end-
to-end, the equity return dollars that the producer-owners woul d
receive would be in the $.20 to $.25 per Mf of capacity range,
as opposed to the netback of perhaps $3.00 per Mf, assumng a
market price of $5.50. Cdearly, the producer-owners have a
greater stake in the upstreamthan the m dstream segnent.

He said the divergence of interests becones nore evident in
expansi on, because the additional increnental profit is very
small. He is concerned the producer-owners would not have the
financial incentive to expand the pipeline except to the extent
that they had increnental gas of their own to go through it.

The question to the legislature is how can it ensure that the
pi peline project, with this group of sponsors, will mmc the
incentives of an independent pipeline; and how can it rely on
the federal legislation (Section 105 of the 2004 statute) that
gives FERC the authority to conpel an expansion, when the 2004
statute has not been judicially construed or tested. Timng is
al so an issue. The independent producers need to know that the
capacity will be avail able when they need it.

One alternative would be for the state to rely on Article 8.7
the state-initiated expansion provision in the contract, but
that section is subject to many conditions. The party that asked
for the expansion would still have to bid in open season and
still have to deal with timng. Another alternative would be to
rely on the FERC enforcenent nmechani snms, but there are issues of
litigation and timng associated with that too.

2:11:56 PM

MR. SHEPLER suggested that, while the state is negotiating
taxes, royalties, and other concessions with the sponsor group
in exchange for commtnents to build the pipeline, it insert
binding commitnents into the contract to expand the pipeline
under reasonable ternms and conditions. He recommended that these
include: the pipeline would conduct periodic open seasons,
bi nding or non-binding; the pipeline sponsors would agree to
file for expansion certifications upon request by creditworthy
shi ppers, (using Article 8.7 limts as a benchmark for a
reasonabl e engi neering increnent); expansion would be predicated
upon the use of rolled-in pricing.

By building the ternms and conditions above into the contract,

the state could replicate the notivations of an independent
pi peline conpany. The expansion commtnents should not

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 5- July 31, 2006



materially affect the producer-owners’ conmitnent or ability to
buil d the pipeline.

2:16:24 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that sone of what M. Shepler said echoed the
concerns of Anadarko regarding Article 8.7. He referenced the
need to start over on Article 8.7 to get rid of sonme of the
hurdles to state-initiated expansion, and substitute rolled-in
pricing and periodi c open seasons.

2:17:12 PM

MR. SHEPLER agreed that he is not a fan of Article 8.7, as it
has too many hurdles to be a reliable expansion nechanism He
said that it mght not have to be thrown out, but it should be
nodi fied. The commttee has heard that there are three expansion
vehicles available in this project: FERC mandated, voluntary,
and Article 8.7, but the contract is conpletely silent on
vol untary expansion. There should be a provision in the contract
laying out terns for a voluntary expansion.

2:18:49 PM

SENATOR ELTON said he recalled a suggestion that the LLC may
make it easier for state-initiated expansion. But he believed
that the controlling docunent should be the contract that is
before the commttee and not an LLC.

2:19: 28 PM

MR. SHEPLER pointed out that the LLC may be able to take care of
the issue, but no one has seen the LLC and he feels it is too
important an issue to | eave to chance.

2:19: 54 PM
SENATOR BEN STEVENS arri ved.

2:20: 04 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked whether nodifying Article 8.7 would be a
deal - br eaker.

MR. SHEPLER responded that he did not know, but he did not
believe that a pipeline owner should have any objection to that
type of provision. Any objection it mght have would relate to
its interests in the upstream and not to its interests as a
pi pel i ne owner.

2:21:09 PM
SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if M. Shepler could explain footnote
8, on page 19.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 6- July 31, 2006



2:22:15 PM

MR. SHEPLER responded that, in recent discussions, the sponsor
group said that the pipeline will be expanded, and that the
pi peline could be expanded from 4.5 bcf to about 6 bcf a day
using |owcost conpression; but the presunption is based on
specific sizing in the initial design of the pipeline, and
nothing in the contract commits the parties to 4.5 bcf per day
design capacity or to expansion to 6 bcf per day.

2:24:07 PM

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said that he was not sure M. Shepler’s
comments explained footnote 8. He referred to a sentence in the
footnote that reads:

As noted by Anadarko, the physical interest finding
indicates that only the sponsor group proposed using a
|arge dianeter pipe. It my be that the other conpanies
that discussed the project wth the state had a nore
realistic handle on the design issue and the sponsors wll
eventually cone around to the smaller design. In that case,
of course, the economcs of expansion wll be nuch
di fferent than has been presented to date.

He asked M. Shepler if that is nerely specul ation.

2:25:11 PM

MR. SHEPLER responded that the fiscal interest findings note
that the sponsor group was the only group that commtted to
build the larger diameter pipeline. The other proponents
proposed a small er dianeter pipeline.

2:25:38 PM
SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked how M. Shepler knew that.

2:25: 47 PM

MR. SHEPLER replied that it is in the fiscal interest finding
and is quoted in the Anadarko witten comments that were filed
on the contract. He said that because there is no prohibition on
changing the qualified project plan, or no state veto over
mat erial changes to the qualified project plan, it may evolve
over time and the pipeline that is built my not have that
expansibility in the design. So it is speculative, but the
assunption is that the line will be expanded to the 6 bcf per
day level. He noted that the assunption is encouraging, but felt
t he expansi on should be in the contract.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -7- July 31, 2006



2:27:06 PM

SENATOR WAGONER commented that there are two ways to | ook at the
expansion to 6 bcf, one is wth a 52-inch pipe, the other is
with a 48-inch pipe and nuch nore expensive |ooping. [Looping:
I ncreasing capacity on a pipeline system or segnent by adding
anot her pipeline running parallel to existing lines.] It is the
size of the pipe that makes it easier to expand capacity.

2:27:56 PM

MR. SHEPLER responded that it is also his understanding that the
smal |l er pipe cannot be expanded as economically as the |arger
one.

2:28.: 54 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said he had never read through a filing for a
tariff, and asked what goes into conpiling the reinbursable
costs for a tariff.

2:29:27 PM
MR. SHEPLER replied that there are no “reinbursable” costs per
se.

CHAI R SEEKINS corrected hinself to say those on which he could
get the 14 percent return.

MR. SHEPLER said that the FERC reviews the detailed construction
proposal filed by the pipeline and initial rates are established
in the certificate order. After three years, the FERC requires
the pipeline to re-justify its cost estinates and adjusts rates
based on the outcone of its analysis.

2: 30: 38 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked if things Ilike the Environnental | npact
Statenent (EIS) are part of that filing.

2:30: 56 PM

MR. SHEPLER replied that the itens are either “cost of service”
or expensed itens, or capitalized itens, which could include a
| ot of the environnmental work, and these go into the rate base.

2:31:12 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked if access, roads, and engineering costs
woul d be i ncl uded.

MR. SHEPLER replied yes.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 8- July 31, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS asked whether there would be a very |large
difference in the engineering costs between a 48 and a 52-inch

pi pe.
MR. SHEPLER replied that he could not answer that question.

2:32:21 PM

RICK HARPER, Econ One Research, Inc., Consultant to the
Legislature, interjected that he was not sure either, because a
52-inch pipe is not usual. He noted that, when dealing wth
smal l er increnents, say the difference between an 18-inch and a
24-inch pipe, the cost difference is not great.

2:32:42 PM

SENATOR DYSON said that the conmittee heard testinony that no
one has previously used 52-inch pipe to carry the pressure
required to get to 6 bcf, and that no one is capable of doing it
at this time. The transportation of the larger pipe is also a
new issue. The inplication was that a bigger pipe with thicker
walls and a higher-pressure capacity, would ultimtely be
cheaper than snaller pipes.

CHAIR SEEKINS nmnused that he was trying to view future
expandability in two ways, first as a non-producer and second as
a producer. The incentive to control costs would not be as great
for a non-producer whose return is based on how nuch steel is in
the ground, as it would for a producer.

2:36: 29 PM
MR. SHEPLER confirnmed that is a point the sponsor group raised.

CHAI R SEEKINS comrented that is because they would have to pay
for it one way or the other.

MR. SHEPLER confirnmed that they would. He said that, with the
addition of the conpression-based expansion, rates should
decline. H's only objection was that there is no contractual
commitnment. He also noted that to foster conpetition, capacity
i s key.

2:38: 00 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS said that it serves the state’'s interests to be
able to ship nore gas. He wondered whether, as an owner, it

could reduce its costs by shipping nore.

MR. SHEPLER responded that it could, as long as it was not
necessary to engage in | ooping.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -9- July 31, 2006



2: 38: 35 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said that his only concern, on the conpetitive
side, would be whether it would cause an increnmental cost to the
shi ppers that are already there.

MR. SHEPLER said that could be an issue in a |ooping expansion
The debate is whether to charge the expansion costs to the new
shi pper, or spread them out anmong the other shippers as well
That nodel would cause a slight increase to existing shippers,
but not as great an increase as the new shipper would have to
bear individually.

2:39: 37 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS asked for clarification that existing shippers
woul d have to subsidi ze new shi ppers.

2:39: 59 PM

MR. SHEPLER replied yes. According to FERC, they would have to
pay a slightly higher increnental charge. FERC allows for
negotiated rates, which would insulate existing shippers from
those costs. He added that there are nmany events that can cause
rates to go up, and an expansion is just one of them

2:41:10 PM

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if someone could give him an idea of what
the cost of that initial expansion mght be, or whether there
woul d be an actual reduction in costs as a result. He said it
seened that conpressor expansion could actually drive costs
down.

MR. SHEPLER replied yes, that should reduce rates.

2:41: 48 PM
MR. WAGONER asked if access and expansion were the only issues
that the comm ttee should be considering.

MR. SHEPLER responded that access is a fundanmental issue that
comes under the Basin Control heading, but it may not be the
only issue.

MR. HARPER said he recogni zed that Senator Seekins was searching
for a broader understanding of the natural alignnent of
interests or lack thereof. He admtted that he had not reached
any conclusions, but said he agreed wth M. Shepler that the
producers should have incentives to keep costs down. He pointed
out however, that the three sponsors do not have enough gas to

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 10- July 31, 2006



fill the pipeline for its lifetine, so as owners they wll be
dependent upon the independents as well as their own efforts.

SENATOR DYSON said he read in M. Shepler’s paper that, if there
is reluctance to expand a producer-owned pipeline’ s capacity, it
m ght be due to upstream incentives. He asked if either of the
consultants could cite historical exanples of how upstream
interests mght work agai nst expansi on.

2:45: 36 PM
MR. SHEPLER said that he was aware of only 6 small producer-
owned pi pel i nes.

2:46: 45 PM

MR. HARPER distingui shed between a producer-affiliate of a
pipeline and a producer-owed pipeline. The size of this
project, and the fact that the three major participants contro

so much of the product makes it unique. The non-standard nature
of this project causes him and M. Shepler to recommend
addi tional caution.

SENATOR WAGONER brought up liquids and the pipeline’ s capacity
to handle them He noted that the contract does not address
liquids except to say that there will be a study done before the
date of sanction. He stressed that if the state does not address
the matter now, during contract negotiations, the engineering
will be done and it will lose the opportunity to process those
liquids in Al aska. He asked M. Shepler to comment on that wth
regard to pipeline capacity.

MR. SHEPLER responded that he was not sure how to respond.

MR. HARPER said that it is a very inportant issue that, in terns
of Basin Control, has not been tabled. He agreed with Senator
Wagoner that it should be dealt with now, in the contract.

2:51: 39 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said that, if the market for the liquids were the
Far East, there would be a natural conpetitive advantage to
extract themin Al aska where it is closer to the narket.

2:52:27 PM

MR. HARPER said that typically processing plants are nore
closely aligned with field production than downstream but
Al berta, Texas and Louisiana have huge infrastructures of
natural gas liquid renoval, with whole industry and regulatory
structures surrounding them He would be concerned about this

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -11- July 31, 2006



contract structure and want to nmke sure that the normm
econonmic drivers are in place.

2:53: 57 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS comented that when he was a nenber of the
governor’s advisory commttee on North Slope natural gas, they
were told that there were enough liquids in that envelope to
accommodate two or nore world-class liquid gas extraction
pl ant s.

MR. HARPER said he doesn’'t doubt that, and noted that Senator
WAgoner’ s question about whether there is sonething attendant on
the design and size of pipe and the operating reginen specified
that would influence the outcone in sone way, is a very good
one.

CHAI R SEEKINS wanted to go back to the discussion of the cost of
getting gas to narket, and whether expansion would drive costs
down rather than up. He related a business analogy to illustrate
t hat cooperation between conpetitors to get a product to market
made econom ¢ sense as |long as neither would | ose market share.

2:55:46 PM

MR. SHEPLER said that the anal ogy was valid, but used another to
illustrate the independents’ position regarding access. They are
concerned about being at the nmercy of the producer-owners.

CHAI R SEEKI NS said he appreciates their position, but would feel
nore confortable if he had a federal agency |ooking into that to
be sure the state is not placed in a non-conpetitive situation

MR. HARPER said that he had no reason to doubt the veracity of
t he sponsors, but he would recomend that the state pin down as
much as possi bl e.

2:58: 51 PM

MR. SHEPLER said that he recently read two articles that relate
to the point he nade earlier today about the criticality of
timng. The articles describe proceedings initiated in 2004 and
2005 that are just now noving to FERC s enforcenment division. If
a producer had a conplaint related to expansion, waiting for the
federal agency would not be the preferred approach.

3:00: 34 PM

MR. HARPER sunmarized by saying that, although this is a shift
structurally fromthe way the industry has operated in the past,
it has been allowed for and considered Ilegislatively and

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -12- July 31, 2006



according to regulation. He cautioned that the state is treading
on new ground however, and he isn’t confortable recomending
that the state rely solely on federal oversight or renedy. To
the extent that the state can protect itself <contractually
relative to expansion, it should do so. He also rem nded the
commttee that, in his opinion, the state should take delivery
of the gas at the term nus rather than upstream

He directed the commttee’'s attention to a supplenental report
that he had prepared, and to reports provided by Anadarko and BG
Gas.

3:06:12 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked M. Harper about taking gas in kind, and
what the state might expect when nmarketing that gas.

MR. HARPER responded that he did not agree with the notion that
it aligns the interests of the state and the producers, because
at the point that the state markets the gas, it beconmes a
conpetitor against sone of the fiercest conpetitors in the world
in the areas of conmmodity narketing, transportation, capacity
managenent, futures, derivative products, and all the things the
state would have to understand to be successful. The producer-
owners also have broad portfolios that allow them to nake
adjustnments and marketing arrangenents that the state cannot. It
is a heroic step and doable, but the state now benefits directly
fromthe sponsors’ efforts and that would change the nmonent this
went into effect.

3:08: 29 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said that there are a |ot of expansions going on
in the pipeline field and a lot of proposed expansion in re-
gasification plants across the country. He asked whether the
trend in regasification plants is toward producer-owned or
i ndependently owned pl ants.

3:09: 25 PM
MR. HARPER asked Senator Seekins if he meant LNG regasification.

CHAI R SEEKI NS sai d yes.

3:09:45 PM

MR. SHEPLER said that he does not know, but that Dr. Finizza,
who did a nmeno for Econ One on LNG would be part of the Port
Aut hority presentation later in the week and he is the guru on
LNG

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 13- July 31, 2006



MR. HARPER concurred that Dr. Finizza is an LNG expert and woul d
be able to answer Senator Seekins’ question. He added that he
believed the producers were taking significant positions in
regasification, but not in the pipelines dowstream of that.

3:10: 13 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS asked whether there are additional ©pipelines
contenplated to go with the re-gasification plants, or do they
feed into existing infrastructure.

3:10:46 PM

MR. HARPER apol ogi zed for not having an answer to that question,
and reiterated that the conmmttee would get nore conplete
informati on on Thursday and Friday. He did say however, that it
is a conmbination of all of the above, and there is an incentive
to site regasification plants where there is already adequate
infrastructure.

CHAI R SEEKI NS responded that he wondered whether a new trend is
devel oping in ownership of the infrastructure to get the gas to
mar ket as well as to produce the gas.

MR. HARPER said he has not seen any indication that it is a nass
trend, and admtted that he is troubled because he does not
understand why these producers would want an ownership interest
in the pipeline. The returns are good, but not as great as they
are accustomed to get, so he does not understand their
noti vati on.

MR. SHEPLER added that the Alliance Pipeline is the only other
instance in North Arerica of a large pipe that started out as a
producer-owned pipeline. There were nine owner-producers, but
over tine they sold their interests and it is now owned and
operated by Enbridge.

MR. HARPER said that, in that case, there were nore participants
hol ding fewer shares and no one else was prepared to undertake
the project, so something had to be done to “de-bottleneck” the
west ern sedi nentary basi n.

SENATOR BUNDE asked for clarification from M. Harper of his
comment that, if producers were to expand their holdings to
include a pipeline and then continued to hold it after
production started, it would depress their stock val ue.

MR. HARPER responded that the pipeline’s regulated rate of
return would be below their expectation. There was a great

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -14- July 31, 2006



reluctance historically for mjor producers to own interstate
pi pelines, because they did not want to give federal regulators
too nuch access to their operations.

3:17: 04 PM

SENATOR BUNDE said that he was curious to know why the sponsors
have expressed such an interest in building this pipeline if, as
M. Harper suggested, it mght not be in their best interests to
do so.

MR. HARPER said he just could not cone to terns with why they
would want to own the pipeline, since the rate of return is
bel ow traditional profiles.

3:18: 07 PM
CHAIR SEEKINS said that a 14 percent return risk-free sounds
pretty good.

CHAIR SEEKINS called a 5 minutes recess at 3:18: 37 PM

3:27:16 PMcall to order

SENATOR ELTON said he would ask one question in 3 parts, and
hoped to draw upon M. Harper’s previous experience as a gas
pi peline executive. He asked for M. Harper's reaction to
whether the ~contract is sufficient in its definition of
diligence, whether it is normal when constructing a pipeline
that parties wuld be restricted from seeking redress on
contract terns through the court, and whether, as a forner
pi pel i ne executive, he would have been confortable signing a
contract w thout know ng what the LLC agreenent was.

MR. HARPER responded that his witten reports address the issue
of diligence at length, but went on to say that the diligence
standard in this agreenent is not according to industry practice
and is a weak standard taken in conjunction with the limtations
the arbitrators would have to deal wth in nmaking their
determ nations. He also pointed out that diligence, as defined
in this contract, is not akin to a prudent operator standard,
which is typically applied in the field, or a due diligence
st andar d.

He was even nore concerned about the state’'s |ack of recourse to

the courts, and the fact that consequential, punitive, and other
damages are wai ved.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -15- July 31, 2006



Wth regard to signing a contract w thout having seen the LLC,
he said he would not and in fact did not feel entirely
confortabl e advi sing them w t hout having seen it.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that, in all fairness, no one had asked the
commttee to ratify a contract w thout seeing the LLC, and that
he did not think any of them would consider that.

MR. HARPER agr eed.

3:33: 57 PM

SENATOR DYSON comment ed that he was not sure Senator Seekins was
correct in saying that no one was considering approval wthout
seeing the LLC. Sone of the discussions in commttee referenced
a pretty tight tinmeline in order to get the bill out before
Novenber .

CHAI R SEEKI NS responded that he m ght have over spoken, but that
he certainly was not interested in voting to ratify a contract
before he had seen the entire agreenent.

SENATOR DYSON asked for clarification of the last line on page
15 of M. Shepler’s coments, which says, “expansion does not
require installation of loops in excess of 100 mles...”. He
observed that, given that the gas line will be 2500 or 3800
mles long, it seened that expansion would occur in |onger than
100-m | e segnents.

MR. SHEPLER responded that page 15 is a recitation of what is in
Article 8.7, and deferred to M. Harper for further comment.

MR. HARPER said that, based on his understanding of the overal
pi pel i ne design, he could not explain that sentence.

SENATOR DYSON asked whether, in his experience, it was comon to
[imt the nunber of mles in an expansion | oop.

MR. HARPER replied that he had not seen it before.

SENATOR DYSON asked whether expansion |oops are often |onger
t han t hat.

MR. HARPER replied yes.

SENATOR DYSON referred to the first paragraph on page 17 of M.
Shepl er’s comments, and asked if he could explain it.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 16- July 31, 2006



MR. SHEPLER said that this also was |ifted directly fromArticle
8.7 of the contract. In the context of a state-initiated
expansion, if the sponsors file a proposal for expansion wth
the FERC and the FERC certificates it but requires any changes,
this section allows the operator of the pipeline to reject the
certificate. If the FERC approves a certificate and the operator
rejects what was approved, it is not authorized to expand/build
a pipeline.

SENATOR DYSON asked whether that section was still referring to
state-initiated expansion.

MR. SHEPLER sai d yes.

SENATOR DYSON comented that, if the state initiates the
expansion (line 4, page 17), and the FERC certificates it, he
assunes that the FERC agrees with what the state wants to do;
but he wondered if Article 8.7 was saying that the project
entity nmust reject it.

MR. SHEPLER responded that he was not sure, but he understood
that if the entity files for state-initiated expansion using
increnental pricing, for exanple, and the FERC approves the
expansion but requires a different pricing nethod, this
provision authorizes the project entity to reject it. There
could be any nunber of other terms that the FERC nmight require
to be changed, but this is one scenario he could see com ng up

SENATOR DYSON asked whether, if the state initiated an
expansion, the other ownership partners would have to agree with
the state on it.

MR. SHEPLER responded that, according to Article 8.7, if a party
has been turned down for expansion and asks the state to
initiate an expansion under the contract, the contract obligates
the project entity to seek an expansion. This section gives the
pi pel i ne conpany the authorization to reject the certificate, if
what was approved by the FERC is not exactly the expansion it
filed for.

MR. SHEPLER said that he had |listed sone of the nmany conditions
that really eviscerate any value 8.7 mght have, including the
100 mle looping, no rate increase to existing shippers etc.

3:43: 52 PM

SENATOR DYSON clarified that if the state decides to apply for
expansi on on behal f of the party who was turned down...

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -17- July 31, 2006



MR. SHEPLER said that this provision does not give the state the
right to do a sole-risk expansion and 8.7 is not an alternative
way to create a sole-risk expansion

SENATOR DYSON said that what he wanted to know was whether, if
the state decides to apply for expansion and the other partners
are not in agreenent, the partners are required to file a joint
application for expansion with the FERC

MR. SHEPLER said yes, under Article 8.7 they are, and that it
woul d be treated as a vol untary expansi on

SENATOR DYSON asked whether, if FERC found differently from the
appl i cati on, the project entity  must rej ect the FERC
certificate.

MR. SHEPLER replied that the wording in Article 8.7 is that the
project entity “shall reject”, unless the difference is mnor or
“all the nmenbers of the project entity vote otherwise.” He said
that within 30 days of getting the certificate, the project
entity nust file a notice of acceptance, or nust reject any
certificate that cones back different fromwhat was applied for.

SENATOR DYSON observed that seens to inpugn the idea that FERC
is looking out for the greater good for all and can over rule
for a | arger purpose.

MR. SHEPLER responded that, as had been expl ai ned, the FERC puts
out their certificate order subject to specific terns and
conditions, and normally there are many conditions attached to a
FERC certificate. The applicant can |look at that and decide
whet her or not he is in agreement with it.

SENATOR ELTON stated that, as he understands it, assumng the
state initiates an expansion and the FERC agrees, if the FERC
makes any substantive change, it isn't the “project entity” that
must reject the certificate, if any single part of the project
entity objects, it nust be rejected. So all parties in the
project entity nmust agree or it nmust be rejected.

MR. SHEPLER replied yes.
SENATOR ELTON observed that if one party were reluctant, it

could encourage a certificate with a change so it would have
veto power as a nenber of the project entity.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 18- July 31, 2006



3:50:31 PM
SENATOR WAGONER asked if M. Shepler or M. Harper have ever
seen any systemas rigorous as what is set out in 8.7.

MR. SHEPLER said that he is not aware of any other agreenents in
which the parties have had occasion to enter into anything |ike
Article 8.7. His concern about Article 8.7 is that it is so nuch
nore restrictive than the FERC mandated expansion and covers
ci rcunstances in such a narrow wi ndow, that he doesn’'t see it as
provi ding nmuch relief for any producer.

MR. HARPER agreed and said that is the fundanmental basis for the
al arm t hey sounded over Basin Control.

SENATOR DYSON noted that in the contract, on page 94, it states
that the “am cable resolution process does not apply to dispute
resol ution under Article 8.7".

MR. SHEPLER said M. Loeffler explained that, in this context,
they did not want to take the tinme to go through internedi ate
di spute resolution and this provision would get the nmatter to
arbitration nore quickly.

MR. HARPER said that there has been some concern in the context
of Basin Control about current gas prices, so he wanted to
provide the commttee with a tool to reference how the industry
would normally view characterization of current prices. The
industry wusually looks at 12 nonths prices on the NYMEX
(NYMEX. com Natural Gas Futures Prices) as an indicator of what
t he market is doing.

SENATOR WLKEN said that it has been suggested that what the
conmttee has before themis the “trust ne” nodel contract. He
wanted to go back to the issues of diligence and |ock-in,
because he was concerned that the state would sign a contract
that is replete with “side boards”. He recognized that the
peopl e of Al aska expect the state to give up some things in the
contract, but if there are real reasons why this pipeline cannot
or should not be built, the commttee needs to know that tinmely,
and know what other directions it can take.

He said that, regarding “lock in”, gas contracts usually are
witten with a 20-year term and wondered whether it is possible
to include a “re-opener”, or review period based on events, so
the state is not locked in for 20 years if circunstances change.
He asked if the contracts are as “hands off” as the conmttee
has been told they are.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -19- July 31, 2006



MR. HARPER confirnmed that “trip wire” events are custonary.

4:02:23 PM
MR. SHEPLER said that he wanted to focus on the shipping
contract, which is the one that wll pay for the pipeline.

Shi pping contracts are typically long term and have no re-
openers. The FERC regulates the rates, terns and conditions
under which the service is provided. He speculated that what
Senator Wl ken was referring to was the gas sales contract or,
nore inportantly, the underlying fiscal contract, which is like
a construction contract. These do tend to have trip-wire events
associated with them

4:04: 10 PM

SENATOR WLKEN asked whether, if someone who is marketing
Al aska’s gas enters into an agreenent to supply gas to a buyer
for 20-years, anything that happens to effect the cost of that
gas can affect the agreenent.

MR. SHEPLER clarified that the 20-year term generally applies to
the shipping contract rather than the gas sales contract. Gas
sales contracts are wusually not Ilong-term fixed-price sales
contracts any nore.

MR. HARPER agreed and said they are nore often market-based and
mar ket sensitive.

SENATOR W LKEN said the FT (firm transportation contract) is a
part of the pipe within the pipe.

MR. SHEPLER confirnmed that an FT gets you space in the pipe.

He said that the state’'s marketing entity would probably have a
whol e portfolio of sales contracts that would affect the value
the state gets for its royalty-in-kind (R K) volunes, but the
contracts to nove those volumes through the pipeline would be
20-year contracts.

SENATOR WLKEN said that the commttee needs help pre-gas to

define in the contract what the state will give up and what it
will get in return, rather than trusting that it wll get a gas
pi pel i ne.

4:07:45 PM

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if the long-term conmtnment is to send a
speci fied anount of gas down the pipe every day, or pay as if it
had been sent.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 20- July 31, 2006



MR. SHEPLER sai d yes, you pay whether you ship or not.

MR. HARPER added that what the state would be dealing with is a
two-part rate with a demand and a commodity conponent in the
rate structure. The state would pay the demand charge whet her or
not it nmoved any gas. Typically all the fixed-cost conponents of
the pipeline are |loaded into the demand structure and then you
pay vari abl e costs based on when you ship the gas.

MR. SHEPLER added that the variable costs are insignificant. The
demand charge is 99 percent of the rate.

4:08:49 PM

SENATOR W LKEN said he found it interesting that M. Harper was
per pl exed about why the producers would want to participate. He
guoted some nunbers from M. Shepler’s presentation illustrating
that the equity return that the producer-owners would receive
would be only in the $.20 to $.25 per Mf of capacity range, as
opposed to the netback of perhaps $3.00 per Mf (assuming a
mar ket price of $5.50), about $8.50 at today’'s price. He asked
if what M. Harper was saying was part of what M. Shepler was
tal ki ng about on page 12 of his presentation.

MR. HARPER said yes, it’s a question of what business you are in
and what risk profile you have. Typically conpanies I|ike
ExxonMobi |l e, BP and ConocoPhillips are looking for a higher-
risk, higher-return potential profile and they have been very
successful at that.

4:10: 57 PM
CHAI R SEEKINS said naybe he’d ask the sponsors why they want to
own the pipeline.

SENATOR WAGONER said when the Legislative Budget and Audit
Standing Conmittee net in Anchorage a few weeks ago, soneone
made the statement that the state had nmade no concessions in the
pipeline contract. He believed they neant that for every
concession the state has made, the sponsors have made one of
equal value. He said that he sent a letter to the governor
outlining the value of the concessions that the state has nade,
and wondered if it was logical to ask the governor’s office, or
t he sponsors, or both, to provide witten docunentation of what
the sponsors have given up in concessions to equal the value of
the state’s.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -21- July 31, 2006



MR. HARPER and MR SHEPLER agreed that it was |ogical and was
his job to ask for that information.

CHAI R SEEKI NS wel coned the sponsors back and asked them why they
want to build and own the pipeline.

4:13:27 PM

MARTI N MASSEY, Joint Interest Manager for U S, Operations,
ExxonMobi| Production, said that a |lot of what M. Harper said
was true, that Exxon isn’t in the pipeline business, and the
returns are not as high as they are usually after, but it cones
dowmn to what 1is the best <course to make this project
coormercially viable. Owming the pipe gives it the best chance
for several reasons: first, Exxon is going to pay for it anyway
because it is going to nmake the FT commtnent; second, it is a
matter of econom cs, how do you value giving that FT to soneone
else; third, this is a huge, risky project and wll have
enornmous inpact on everyone if it isn't done correctly, so
ExxonMbbile feels it should manage and own it, at |east unti
the pipeline is built.

4:15: 39 PM

DAVID VAN TUYL, Comercial WMnager, Alaska Gas Goup, British
Petrol eum (BP), agreed with the statenent that M. Shepler made.
That is, a general assertion that an independent pipeline
conpany is primarily notivated to put steel into the ground
because that expands their rate base. He said, because of that
an independent pipeline conpany doesn’t have an incentive to
reduce the rate base, and that is primarily why the producers
want to build this pipeline. It is certainly a prine notivation
for BP.

He noted that Senator WIken had referenced page 12 in M.
Shepler’s coments, and said that the producers’ gane is to
target the $3.00 notional netback. That is right. BP's ganme is
to insure the highest netback possible, and to do that it needs
to ensure the |owest capital cost project. BP has a unique
notivation to do that and is actually aligned with the state in
that regard. It would consider owning pipelines that are basin-
opening projects to nonetize its resources, and that is the case
her e.

4:18:41 PM

He remnded the commttee of BP's previous experience in the
Arctic and el sewhere and went on to say that, once the pipeline
is up and running, ownership becones a portfolio choice. He
referenced the Alliance Project and said that today there is

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -22- July 31, 2006



zero producer ownership in that project. The portfolio choice
was to dilute after it got up and running.

4:19: 33 PM

VENDY KING Director of External Strategies, ANS Gas Devel opnent
Team ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc., said that, as M. Massey and
M. Van Tuyl highlighted, the producers ultimately will pay the
cost of this project through those shipping commtnents that say
to the pipeline, whether or not we ship gas on the pipeline, we
will be paying a demand charge. And the way that the FERC w |l
allow us to recover any actual costs in the pipeline tariff
ensures that the shippers that sign the FT conmtnents are going
to be carrying the risk of cost overrun. ConocoPhillips also
offers skills that we feel can help mtigate the cost overrun
risks. It is a shipper-owner in both the Mackenzie Delta and the
Rocki es Express pipeline projects and has experience on Al aska's
Nort h Sl ope.

4:21:14 PM
MR. MASSEY said he understands why soneone m ght be suspicious
of their desire to own the pipeline, but it isn't driven by
Basin Control and he thinks those concerns have been adequately
addr essed.

4:22:31 PM

SENATOR WAGONER said he keeps going back to TAPS (Trans Al aska
Pipeline System) and what it was supposed to bring in. That
doesn’t bother him too much because Al aska wasn’t an owner or
partner in the TAPS line; but now, as 20 percent owner of the
gas pipeline, how far does that 20 percent go. The accrual of
additional costs to build the pipeline could put the state in a
position it didn’t intend.

4. 23:56 PM

MR. VAN TUYL said that BP's managenent is well aware of the TAPS
experience also, and learned a lot fromit. A key |lesson |earned
is not to becone schedule driven. That was one of the things
that resulted in the cost overruns on that project. TAPS was
al so the project that pioneered the EIS process. The joint study
that BP conpleted in 2002 defined the regulatory process
associated with this project, to help ensure that it doesn't
repeat sone of the |essons that occurred then.

MR. VAN TUYL pointed out that although it may seem counter-
intuitive, direct state ownership reduces the commercial inpact,
or commercial exposure to cost overruns, because in a Royalty-
in-Value (RIV) world the state is exposed 100 percent to the

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 23- July 31, 2006



cost of the project through time, through the tariff. The state
effectively pays that tariff in the netback that is realized by
the producers. As a direct owner in the pipeline, the state al so
recovers that capital cost through the tariff. So the state
actually hedges its overrun risk by being a direct owner.

M5. KING added that the state, through the contract, has sone
paynents in lieu of taxes that are independent of commodity and
are set up on a throughput basis. The state wanted to maintain
those regressive tax features to be there in the event of a
| oner netback scenario. Paynent in lieu of state corporate
income taxes is another that is based upon an apportionnent of
formul a, based upon worldw de incone, so there are going to be
differences in revenue sources to the state of Alaska fromthis
project than there will be to the producers. Also, the state
will not be paying federal incone tax on the project, as the
producers wl |

SENATOR WAGONER agreed with M. Van Tuyl about the problem of
being too schedul e-driven. He also said that in a workshop that
he attended in Anchorage on nega-projects, he was told that one
of the things that causes new projects to fail nore often than
anything else is using new technol ogies. He thought about that
when the producers were tal king about using a 52-inch pipe.

4:28: 02 PM

SENATOR WLKEN said that his office has been using information
from the FERC website and trying to get an estimate of capacity
and expected first gas for all of the projects in various stages
of conpletion around the country. He was specifically trying to
deal with the issue of “the window and all of the “hurry-up” on
this project. If the state signed a contract imediately it
woul d be five years to sanction and another five years to build,
plus 15 years cap on cost recovery. He asked M. King whether
based on the fact that the Canadian pipeline will go before
ours, this w ndow would close nore quickly than we would Iike
because we have to wait for Canada to finish

M5. KING replied that she does not work on the Mackenzie Vall ey
project or follow it on a day-to-day Dbasis, but that
ConocoPhillips has teanms working in Canada and there is sone
learning they can apply to this project. This is an independent
project and she believes the tineline is realistic.

SENATOR WLKEN said we have an estimated tineline of about

5/5/15 years on this pipeline and asked whether the Mackenzie
Val l ey project has a simlar tineline.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 24- July 31, 2006



M5. KING replied she doesn’'t have that information available
now, but there should be a Prelimnary Information Packet (PIP)
on the Mackenzie Valley project website.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he heard that their anticipated first gas
date has changed from 2011 to 2012.

4. 32:46 PM

SENATOR W LKEN said he is concerned that this project is going
to be delayed waiting for steel and people while they finish in
Canada, and that would nove it out to 2020. By that tine, al
the projects listed on the FERC website could be conpleted and
there m ght not be a market for the gas.

SENATOR WAGONER said that he was going to keep harping on gas

liquids, and while he had three oil representatives at the
table, he wanted to ask themif they have any plans at this tine
for those gas liquids, other than shipping them down the

pi peline to market.

4:34: 09 PM
MR. VAN TUYL said that BP does not. In a study conpleted in
2001- 2002 there was the assunption of a NG Plant, (Natural Gas

Liquid Plant) in Alberta, where there is an existing
infrastructure for processing those gas liquids, an existing
pi peline structure for transporting the liquids, and existing

gas storage capacity, all three of which are essential for that
sort of activity.

He also said that sort of a processing facility can be |ocated
anywhere along the pipeline theoretically, but the [|iquids
leaving the North Slope are too rich to neet the Bruener Tips
specifications in the lower 48 nmarket, so at sone point along
the line they have to be renpoved. BP has not made any specific
plans as far as marketing of its |iquids.

The question came up earlier about the capacity of the line or
the ability of the line to carry gas |iquids beyond the take-off
poi nt, and maybe that needs to be designed in early on because,
if we take those liquids off in Fairbanks or anywhere in Al aska
versus further down stream the design mght be different.

He noted that the current pipeline design is what’'s called a
“dense phase,” which neans the fluid that is in the pipeline
isnt really liquid and it 1isn't really gas, it’'s super-
critical. That is actually the nost efficient way to transport

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 25- July 31, 2006



gas and, as such, the performance of the pipeline downstream of
the liquid take-off point is not significantly nodified.

SENATOR WAGONER said that he was told in confidence by an
i ndi vidual at the same neeting Chairman Seekins attended, that
the Yukon Territories, BC, and Alberta are all battling for the
opportunity to process the gas |iquids because of the jobs that
will create. He said he wants those jobs in Alaska if at al
possi bl e, because it needs those long-term well-paid, technica
and engi neering jobs so the people of Al aska can cone back hone
after they finish college and go to work.

MR. VAN TUYL responded that the state made that point to the
producers during the course of negotiations, and that is why
Article 9.5 contains a commitnment to conplete a study of NG
processi ng before the open season starts, so people will have a
sense for what the business opportunity is and what the cost
associated with devel oping that infrastructure m ght be.

4:38:10 PM
SENATOR WAGONER pointed out that by the time that study is
conpleted the contract will already have been signed by the

Governor and approved by the legislature, so if there isn't
sonmething definitive in the contract other than a study, the
state has lost its chance. The expectation in Canada is that the
gas liquids are going to go to Canada, and at |east a portion of
t hem shoul d be processed in the State of Al aska.

4:39: 37 PM

M5. KING said the NG business has been very volatile and, over
the past five years, it has actually been a cost to the project
to extract sone of the products such as ethane. The producers
have to look at the volatility of that business and see if it is
going to be a value add or a cost burden to the project.

She also pointed out that there is a clear statenment in Article
24. 1F, that says the hydrocarbon liquids delivered to the state
at each delivery point nust be of the sanme conposition as
hydrocarbon liquids delivered to the producers at each delivery
point. So whatever volunme of liquids are in the stream the
state will have the same proportionate conposition as they would
have with a 20 percent gas. She then drew the commttee's
attention to Article 9.5 again, which says *“before the
commencenent of the open season, the nmainline entities shall
conduct a feasibility study for NG. processing and sunmarize it
in the project summary”. The project sunmary is the public
docunent and is not confidential.

SENATE NGD COW TTEE - 26- July 31, 2006



4:41: 23 PM

CHAIR SEEKINS said he knew that there mght be other questions
that have been raised today, so he would be happy to entertain
some of themtonorrow. The intent is to work on the stranded gas
amendnents tonorrow, but the conmttee can start the day wth
sone brief comments regarding the di scussions of today.

4:43: 21 PM Adj our ned

SENATE NGD COW TTEE -27- July 31, 2006



